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December 4, 2003

Securities and Exchange Commission
450 Fifth Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20549

Re:  AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds
Dear Sir or Madam:

Enclosed please find a copy of a class action complaint filed in the United
States District Court for the Southern District of New York on November 19, 2003 by
Bernard Schwimmer against the AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds listed in Appendix A

(the “Funds”) and the Funds’ affiliated parties listed in Appendix B. The Funds make
this filing pursuant to Section 33 of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended.

Sincerely,

/le

Paul M. Miller

Enclosure
CC:  Keith A. O’Connell /Pﬁ@@ESSED
Stephen Laffey \ DEC 08 2003
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AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds

APPENDIX A

Name Registration CIK No.
No.
AllianceBernstein Technology Fund, Inc. 811-03131 | 0000350181




APPENDIX B

Affiliated Parties of AllianceBernstein Mutual Funds

Name CIK No. Registration | IARD No.
No.
Alliance Capital Management Holding L.P. 0000825313 | 001-09818 | 106998
801-32361
Alliance Capital Management Corporation N/A 801-39910 | 107445
Alliance Capital Management L.P. N/A 801-56720 108477
AXA Financial, Inc. 0000880002 | 001-11166 | N/A
Gerald Malone, Senior Vice President of N/A N/A N/A

Alliance Capital Management L.P. and Portfolio
Manager

00250.0073 #447495
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" BERNSTEIN LIEBHARD & LIFSHITZ, LLP .
Sandy A. Liebhard (SL-0835)

U. Seth Ottensoser (UO-3703)

Gregory M. Egleston (GE-1932)

10 East 40" Street

New York, NY 10016

Tel: {212) 779-1414 ‘ “ | 03 CV 91 9 ?

Attorneys for Plaintiff

~ UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK:

S it

BERNARD SCHWIMMER, On Behalf of I—hmself CIVIL ACTION NO.
And All Others Similarly Situated, )
: CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT
Plaintiff, FOR VIOLATIONS OF THE
' FEDERAL SECURITIES LAWS

V.

ALLTANCEBERNSTEIN TECHNOLOGY FUND,
INC.; ALLIANCE CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
HOLDING L.P.; ALLIANCE CAPITAL

MANAGEMENT L.P.; ALLIANCE CAPITAL P
MANAGEMENT CORPORATION; AXA oo m
FINANCIAL, INC.; GERALD MALONE; and = = -
CHARLES SCHAFFRAN T
L ]
0o

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
ALLIANCEBERNSTEIN TECHNOLOGY FUND; )
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Defendants.

Flairﬁiff alleges the following based upon tﬁe investigation of plaintiff’s counsel, which
included a review of United States Securities and Exchange Corﬂmission (“SEC”) filings as \yell
as other fégulatory ﬁlipgs and repoﬁs and advisories about the AllianceBernstein Funds (as
defined herein), press re]eases}, and media reports about the A]iianceBernstein Funds. Plaintiff
believes that substantial additional evidentiary support will exist for the aliegations set forth

herein after a reasonable opportunity for discovery.




NATURE OF THE ACTION

l. . Thisisa fédera.l class actioﬁ on .behalf 61’ a class consisting of all persons other
than defendants who purchased or otherwise acquire& shares or other ownership unit§ of oneaor
" more of the mutual funds in the AllianceBernstein farﬁily of funds (i.e., the AllianceBemﬁtein

Funds as defined herein) between _Octéber 2, 1998 and September 2.9', 2003, inclusive, anci who

'Were damaged thercby (the “Class™). Plaintiff seeks to pursue remedies under the Securities Act
£ 1933 (the “Securities Act”).

2. This action ’cha.rges defendants with engaging in an u.ﬁlawﬁxl and deceitfu] co_urse‘
fof conduct designed to impropefly financially édvantage defendants to the detriment of plaintiff
* and the other members of the Class. As part and parce] of defendants’ unlawful conduct,
defendants, as defined below, in clear conuaventioh of their fiduciary responsibiliti.es, and
| disclosure obligations, failed to properly disclose:

| (a)  That select favored customeré were allowed to engage in illegal “late
trading,” a practice, more fully described hergin, Whereby an investor may place an ‘or‘der to
purchase fund shares after 4:00 p.m. aﬁd have that order ﬁlled at that day’s closing net asset
value; and | | |

(b) | That select favo;ed éustomers were impropetly allowed to “time” their
: muﬁral fund trades. Such timing, as more fully described he;ein, impropeﬂy allows an investor
to tradé in and out of a‘ mutual fund to exploit shorpterm mioves and inefficiencies in the manner
in wh‘vich tﬁe mutual funds pricé their shareé.

3 On September 30, 2003, before the market opened, Alliance Capital Management,
L.P.issued 2 press release revealing that it had been contacted by the Securiwtit:S and Exchange
CommiSsion and the New York Siate Attorney General’s Oﬁce in connection with the

regulators’ investigation of the mutual fund industry’s practices of late trading and market

timing.‘ Alliance Capital Management announced that as a result of its own internal




' in\{cs'tigation, it 5ad idemiﬁed conflicts of interests with respect to market timing trénsactions,
leading to the suspénsion of defendant Gefald Malone, a portfolio manager of certain
AlliénceBemsfein Funds and defendant Charleé Schaffran, an executive salesperson of Alliance
hedge fimds. |

4, , Subseqpently, on October 1, 2003, The Wall Srreet Jo’urn&l reported that

defendants Malone and Schaffran allowed certain investors to make rapid trades in 3

AIlianceBerﬂstein Funds that were managéd by Malone, in exchange fof large investments in
- certain Alliance.-hedge funds also managed by Malone. Moreover, the article stated that

accordmg to documents produced by Alhance Capital Management pursuant to a subpoena by

the Attomey General s Office, Edward Stern of Canary Capital placed late trades through Bank

of America for certain AlhanceBernstem Funds. Bank of America has been named as a

défendant in numerous recently ‘ﬁled actions concerning its alleged participation in a wrongfui
and illegal scheme which aliowed Canary, defined herein, to engage in late tr;ding and market |
tiﬁing in mufua] fund families, including Janus, One.Groﬁp, Sﬁong, and Nationé funds. Asa
”nesﬁlt of defendants’ wrongful and illegal ‘misconduct in AllianceBernstein Funds, plaintiff and
rﬁemBers of the Class suffered damages. |

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

S. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this action pur5uant to
Section 22 of the Securities Act (15 U.S.C. § 77v) and 28 U.S.C. § 1331. |
| 6. Many of the acts charged herein, including the preparation aﬁd dissemination of
materially false and misleading information, occurred in substantial part in this District.
Defendants conducted other substantlal busmess within this Dlsmct and many Class members
fes:de within this District. Defendants Alhancc Capxtal Managemenl Holding L.P., Alliance
Capital Management L.P., Alliance Capital Management Corporation, and AXA Financial, Inc.

. maintain offices in this District. . -




7. In connectiop fvith the acts alleggd in this‘ complaint, defendants, directly or
* Indirectly, used the méan§ and instrumentalities of interstate cofnmez;ce, includiﬁg; but not
limited to, the mails, fnterstate telephone communications and the facilities.of the national
securities markets. |
ARTIES

8. Plaintiff Bernard S»chwimmer= as set forth in his certification, which is attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein, purchased units of the A]lia‘nceB.emstein
T@Mology Fund- during the Cllass Period and has been dénaged thereby.

9. Defendant Alli@ceBemﬂein Technolo.gy Fund is among the AllianceBemnstein
.Funds as defined herein. |

'10.  Defendant AllianceBernst_ein Technology Fund, Inc., is ihe registrant for the

AllianceBernstein Technology Fund.'

T As used herein: AllianceBernstein Growth & Income Fund, AllianceBemstein Health
Care Fund, AllianceBernstein Disciplined Value Fund, AllianceBemstein Mid-Cap Growth Fund,
AllianceBernstein Rea) Estate Investment Fund, AllianceBernstein Growth Fund, AllianceBemstein
Select Investor Series Biotechnology Portfolio, AllianceBemstein Small Cap Value Fund,
AllianceBemstein Premier Growth Fund, AllianceBernstein Select Investor Serjes Technology Port,
AllianceBernstein Value Fund, AllianceBernstein Quasar Fund, AllianceBernstein Select Investor Series
Premier Port, AllianceBernstein Utility Income Fund, AllianceBemnstein.Balanced Shares,
‘AllianceBernstein Disciplined Value Fund, AllianceBernstein Global Value Fund, AllianceBernstein
International Value Fund, AllianceBernstein Real Estate Investment Fund, AllianceBernstein Small Cap
Value Fund, AllianceBernstein Utility Income Fund, AllianceBemnstein Value Fund, AllianceBernstein
Allasia AllianceBernstein Blended Style Series - U.S. Large Cap Portfolio, Investment Fund,
AllianceBernstein Global Value Fund, AllianceBernstein Greater China "97 Fund, AllianceBernstein
International Premier Growth Fund, AllianceBernstein International Value Fund, AllianceBemstein
_ Global Small Cap Fund, AllianceBernstein New Europe Fund, AllianceBernstein Worldwide
Privatization Fund, AllianceBernstein Select Investor Series Biotechnalogy Port, AllianceBernstein
Select [nvestor Series Premier Port, AllianceBernstein Select Investor Series Technology Port,
AllianceBemnstein Americas Government Income Trust, AllianceBernstein Bond Fund Corporate Bond
Portfolic, AllianceBemstein Bond Fund Quality Bond Portfolio, AllianceBernstein Band Fund U.S.
Government Portfolio, AllianceBernstein Emerging Market Debt Fund, AllianceBernstein Global _
Strategic Income Trust, AllianceBernstein High Yield Fund, AllianceBernstein Multi-market Strategy
Trust, AllianceBemnstein Short Duration, AllianceBernstein Intermediate California Muni Portfolio,
AllianceBernstein Intermediate Diversified Muni Portfolio, AllianceBernstein Intermediate New York
Muni Portfolio,AllianceBernstein Muni Income Fund National Portfolio, AllianceBernstein Muni Income
Fund Arizona Portfolio, AllianceBemstein Muni Income Fund California Portfolio, AllianceBernstein
Munt Income Fund Insured California Portfolio, AllianceBernstein Muni Income Fund [nsured National
Portfolio, AlliancéeBemstein Muni Income Fund Florida Portfolio, AllianceBernstein Muni Income Fund
Massachusetts Portfolio, AllianceBernstein Muni Income Fund Michigan Portfolio, AllianceBernstein -




11. Each of the AllianceBernstein Funds, iﬁclﬁding the Technology Fﬁnd, are mutual
funds that are managed by defendani Alljénce Capital Management L.P., and that buy, hold, and
se»]l shares or other ownership units that are subject to the misconduct élleged in .this comp]aint.

12 Defendant Alliance Cap1ta1 Management Ho]dmg L.P. (“Alliance Holdmg Vis a
pubhcly-traded holdmg company which prowdes investment management services through

defendant Alliance Capital Management L.P. (“Alhance Capital Management”). Alliance

Muni Income Fund Minnesota Portfolio, AllianceBernstein Muni Income Fund New Jersey Portfolio,
AllianceBemnstein Muni Income Fund New York Portfolio, AllianceBemnstein Muni Income Fund Ohio -
Portfolio, AllianceBemnstein Muni Income Fund Pennsylvania Portfolio, AllianceBernstein Muni Income
Fund Virginia Portfolio, Collegeboundfundsm (are collectively Known as “AllianceBernstein Funds”);

- AllianceBemnstein Growth & Income Fund, Inc., AllianceBernstein Health Care Fund, Inc.,

" AllianceBernstein Disciplined Value Fund, Inc., AllianceBernstein Mid-Cap Growth Fund, Inc.,
AllianceBernstein Real Estate Investment Fund, Inc., AllianceBernstein Growth Fund, Inc.,
AllianceBernstein Select Investor Series Biotechnology Portfolio, Inc., AllianceBemstein Smali Cap
Value Fund, Inc., AllianceBernstein Premier Growth Fund, Inc., AllianceBernstein Select Investor Series
Technology Port, Inc., AllianceBernstein Value Fund, Inc., AllianceBernstein Quasar Fund, Inc.,
AllianceBemstein Select Investor Series Premier Port, Inc,, AllianceBernstein Utility Income Fund, Inc.,
AllianceBemstein Balanced Shares, Inc., AllianceBernstein Disciplined Value Fund, Inc.,

"AllianceBernstein Global Value Fund, Inc., AllianceBemstein International Value Fund, Inc.,
- AllianceBemstein Real Estate Investment Fund, {nc., AllianceBernstein Small Cap Value Fund, Inc.,

. AllianceBerastein Utility Income Fund, Inc., AllianceBemstein Value Fund, Inc., AllianceBernstein
Blended Style Series - U.S. Large Cap Portfolio, Inc., AllianceBernstein All-Asia Investment Fund, Inc.,
AllianceBernstein Global Value Fund, Inc., AllianceBernstein Greater China '97 Fund, Inc.,
AllianceBernstein International Premier Growth Fund, Inc., AllianceBernstein International Value Fund,
Inc., AllianceBernstein Global Small Cap Fund, Inc., AllianceBernstein New Europe Fund, Inc.,
AllianceBernstein Worldwide Privatization Fund, Inc., AllianceBernstein Select Investor Series
Biotechnology Port, Inc., AllianceBernstein Select Investor Series Premier Port, Inc., AllianceBernstein
Select Investor Series Technology Port, Inc., AllianceBemstein Americas Government Income Trust,
Inc., AllianceBemstein Bond Fund Corporate Bond Portfolio, Inc., AllianceBernstein Bond Fund Quality
Bond Portfolio, Inc., AllianceBernstein Bond Fund U.S. Government Portfolio, Inc., AllianceBernstein
Emerging Market Debt Fund, Inc., AilianceBernstein Global Strategic Income Trust, Inc.,
AllianceBernstein High Yield Fund, Inc., AllianceBemnstein Multimarket Strategy Trust, Inc.,
AllianceBernstein Short Duration, Inc., AllianceBemnstein Intermediate California Muni Portfolio, Inc.,
AllianceBernstein Intermediate Diversified Muni Portfolio, Inc., AllianceBemstein Intermediate New
York Muni Portfolio, Inc., AllianceBernstein Muni Income Fund National Portfolio, Inc.,
AllianceBernstein Muni Income Fund Arizona Portfolio, Inc., AllianceBernstein Muni Income Fund
California Portfolio, Inc., AllianceBernstein Muni Income Fund Insured California Portfolio, Inc.,
AllianceBernstein Muni Income Fund Insured National Portfolio, Inc., AllianceBernstein Muni Income
Fund Florida Portfolio, Inc., AllianceBernstein Muni Income Fund Massachusetts Portfolio, Inc.,
AllianceBernstein Muni Income Fund Michigan Portfolio, Inc., AllianceBernstein Muni Income Fund
Minnesota Portfolio, Inc., AllianceBemnstein Muni Income Fund New Jersey Portfolio, Inc.,
AllianceBernstein Muni Income Fund New York Portfolio, Inc., AllianceBernstein Muni Income Fund
Ohio Portfolio, Inc., AllianceBernstein Muni Income Fund Pennsylvania Portfolio, Inc.,

AllianceBernstein Muni Income Fund Virginia Portfolio, Inc. (are co lecnve]y known as
“AlhanceBemstem Registrants®).




.Hojding is incorporated in Delaware with its principal place of business located at 1345 Avenue
of the Americas, New York, New York 10105. Alliance Holding is the ultimate parent of the
AllianceBemst¢in Funds and the parent company of, and controls Alliance Capital Management |
and the AllianceBernstein Regis&ants. As of March 31,2003, Alliance Holding owned
approximately 30.7 percent of the outstanding sﬂarcs of Al]ianée Cipital Mana;gement.

| 13’. | Defendant Alliance Capital Maﬁagement is regisiéred as an‘investmcm advisér
under the fnvestrhgnt Advisers Act andimanaged and advised the AllianceBemnstein Funds
throughou{ the Class Period. During this‘period, Alliarice Capital Management had ultimate
responsibiﬁty for overseeing the day-to-dgy management of the AllianceBernstein Funds.
Alliance Capital Management is located at 1345 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York
10105. |

14 Defendant Alliance Capital Management Corpqratién (“Alliance Corporation™) is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of defendant AXA Financial, Inc. (“AXA”), and the general partner
. of defendants Alliance Holding and Alliance Capital Méﬁagement. Alliance Corporation owns
| 100,000 partnership unﬁs in Alliance Holding, and a | percent general partnership interest in
Alliance Capital Management. Alliance Corporation is located at 140 Broadway, New Yo;k,
New York 10005. :
lS.» : befcndant AXA, aunit of Europe’s gecond ]argeét inéurer‘ AXA SA,isan

international financial services&ganizations which provides financial advisory, insurance and
investment management products and services worldwide. AXA is a Delaware corporation and:
' maintains ité principal place of business at 1290 Avenue of the Americas, New York, New York

10104. AXA controls Alliance Capital Management by virtue of its general partnership interests -




through Alliance Corporation and its 55.7 percent economié interest in Alliance Capital
Management as of March 31, 2003. | |

16. AllianceBemsteih Registrants are the registrants and issuers of the shares of the
AllianceBemnstein Funds. |

17.  Defendant Gerald Malone was at all relevant times a Senior Vice President at
Alliance Capital Management and a portfolio manager of severéj VA]lianceBemste’in Funds,
including the AllianceBernstein Technology Fund, and Alliance hedge funds, and was an active
parﬁcipaﬁt in the unlawful scheme alleged herein.

18. | Defendant Charles Schaffran was at all relevant times a marketing executive at
Alliance Capital Management who sold Alliance hedge fuﬁds to investors, and was an active
participant in the unlawful scheme alleged hérein.

19.  Alliance Holding, Alliance Corporation, Alliance Capital Management and AXA
are referred to collectively herein as the “Fund Defendants.” "

20.  Canary Capital Partners, LLC, is a New Jersey limited liability company with

offices at 400 Plaza Drivé, Secaucus, New Jersey. Canary Investment Management, LLC, is a

New Jersey limited liability company, with offices at 400 Plaza Drive, Secaucus, New Jersey.
Canary Capital Partners, Ltd., is a Bermuda limited liability company. Edward I. Stern (“Stern”)
is a resident of New ’fork, New York. Stern was the manaéing brincipal of Canary Capital
Partners, LLC, Canary Investment Management, LLC, and Canary Capital Partners, Ltd. Canary
Capital Partners, LLC; Canary Capital Partners, Ltd.; Canary Ihvestmem Mmagemenf, LLC; end

Stern are collectively referred to herein as “Canary.”




PLAINTIFF’S CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

21.  Plaintiff Br"mgé ﬁis action a§ a class action pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil
Procedure 23(a) and (b)(3) on behalf éf a Class, consisting of all persons or entitiés who
purchased or othemise acquired shares of the Technology Fund, or like interésts in
AllianceBemstein Funds, betw¢en October 2, 1998 and September 29, 2003, inclusive, and who
-were damagea thereby. Plaintiff and each of the Class nﬁémbers purchased shares or other
ownership‘ ufxits-‘in AilianceBemstéin Funds pursuant to a registrétion statement and pfospeetus.
The registration statements and i:rospectuses pursﬁarit to which plaintiff and the other Class
membérs purﬁhased their shéres or 6thn;:t ownership lej,ts‘in the AllianceBemstein ‘Funds, .
including the Technology_ Fund, are refen'ed. to coliectively 5éréiri as the “Prospectuses.”
Excluded from the Class ére defendants, members\of their immediate families and their legal
representatives, heirs, successors or assigns‘and any entity in which defendants hﬁye orhad a
controlling interest. |

22.  The mefnbérs of the Class are sé numerous that joinder of all members is
impracticable. While the exact number of Class members is unknown to plaintiff at this time |
and can only be asceﬁained through apioropriate diswveﬁ, plaixitiﬁ" believes that there are
thousands of members in the pfopoScd blass.’ Record owners‘a.nd other members of thé Class
may be ideptiﬁed frvom records maintained by the AlliaﬁceBemstein Fund's and'may be notified

of the pendency'bf this action by mail, using the form of notice similar to that customarily used

in securities class actions.




23) Plalntlft’s clmms are typxcal of the clalms of the members of the Class as all
members of the Class are smnlarly affected by defendants wrongful conduct in violation of
federal law that is complained of herem. o : '

24. Plamtrﬁ will falrly and adequately protect the interests of the members of the

~ Class and have retained counsel competent and expenenced in class and securities lmgatron

25. Cornmon questions of law and fact exist as to all members of the Class and
predominate over any questions solely affecting individual members of the Class. Among the
questions of law and fact common to the Class are:

(a)  whether the federal securities Iawswere violated by defendants’ acts as
alleged herein;
| ) whether statements made by.defendants to the investing public during the
Claes Period misrepresented material facts about the business, or)eraﬁons and financial -
statements of the AllianceBexnstein_Funds; énd |
(c)  to what extent the members of the Class have sustained damages and the
proper measure of dzuna'ges.
-26. A class action is snperior to all other avajlable methods for the fair and eﬁicient ‘

adjudication of this controversy since joinder of all members is impracticable. Furthermore, as

 the damages suffered by indfvidual Class members may be relatively small, the expense and

burden of mdmdual lmgatlon make it vxrmally 1mpossrble for members of the Class to

individually redress the wrongs done to them. There wd] be no difficulty in the management of

this actionasa class action. -




e

SUBSTAN ALLEGATIONS

Intréduction: Tile Doublé Standard for Privileged Investors

-27.  Mutual funds are meant to be long-term investmeﬁts and are.thgarefore} the fﬁvored
savings vehicles for many Americans’ rétiremem .and college funds. The AllianceBemstein
Funds were no exception; the AlliénceBernstein Funds’ website states: “A little planning goes a
long way. Wh'at.evcr your long;terfn goal, we can help you Eegin to plan a savings strategy. If

your goal is listed below, let us show you how. I want to invest for a comfortable retirement. -

.I’m saving for a college education. I'm saving toward a dream purchase.”

28.  However, unbeknownst to investors, from at least as early as October 2, 1998 and
until September 29, 2003, inclusive, defendants engaged in wongﬁll schemes that enabled
certain favored investors to reap many millions of dollars in profit, at the expense of the

AllianceBemstein Funds’® investors, including plaintiff and other-meinbers‘of the Class, through

“secret and illegal after-hours trading and timed trading. In exchange for allowing and facilitating

this improper conduct, the Fund Defendants received substantial fees and other remuneration for
themnselves and their affiliates to the de‘m’mént 6f plaintiff and the other membersvof the Class
who knew. nothing of ﬂnése illicit arrangements. Speciﬁcaily, Alliance Capital Management, as
m;nager of the AlliapceBernstein Fun&é, and each of the relevant fund managers, profited from
fees Alliance Capital Management charged to the AllianceBemnstein F ubn,ds that were measured as
a percentage of the fees under management. In exchange for ihe right to engage in illegal late
trading and timiﬁg, which hurt ;ﬁlaintiff and other Class members, by értiﬁcially and materially
affecting the value of the AllianceBemstein Funds, Canary, agreed to park substantial assets in

the Funds, thereby increasing the assets under AllianceBernstein Funds’ management and the




fees'paid to AllianceBernstein Fﬁnds’ managers. The agsets parked in the A.IlianceBerﬂsfein
Funds in exchange for the right to engage m late irading and timing have been referred to as
“sticky assets.” Furthermore, Cénary secretly disguised additional, improper comp‘ensation té the
- Fund Defendants as interest payments on monies loaned by the Fund Defendants to Canary for
_ the purpose of fmaécing the illegal scheme. The synergy between the Fund Defendanté and
Canary hingéd on ordinary investors’ misplaced trust in the integrity of mutual fund compaﬁies
and allowed deféndants tq profit handsomely at the expense of plaintiff and other members of the

Class.

Illegal Late Trading ﬁt the Expense of Plaiﬁtiff and Other Membém of the Clas§ .

29. “Late.trading” exploits the uniciﬁe way in which mutual funds, ihcluding the
AllianceBernstein Funds, set théir prices. The daily price of mutua) fund shares is generally
calculated once a Aay as of 4:00 p.m. EST. The price, known as the ‘Net Aéset Va]ﬁe” or
“NAV,” generai]y reflects the closing prices of the sgéurities tﬁat cbmpn'sé a given furici"s '
portfolio, plus the valué of any cash that the fund manager maintains for the fund Orders to
buy,‘l 1 sell or exchange mutuél fund shéres p]aced at or before 4:00 p.m. EST on a given da_y'
receive that day’s price. Orders placed after 4:00 p.m. EST are supposed .t(-J be filled using the ‘
fo'llowing day’s pﬁce. Unl.:ueknownst to plaintiff and bthef members of the Class, and in
violation of SEC regulétions, And Caﬁary, secretly agreed with the Fund Defendants thvat orders A
they p]éced after 4:00 p.m. on a given day would illegally receive that day’s price (as opposed to
the néxt da}./’s pﬁce, which the order would have received had it been vprocesscd lawfully). - This

illegal conduct allowed Canary to capitalize on market- moving financial and other information




that was made pubhc after the close of tradmg at 4:00 p.m. wh11e plamtxff and other members of
the Class, who bought their AlhanceBmstem Funds shares lawfully, could not.

3Q. Her: is an illustration of how the favored treatment accorded to Canary took

. money, dollar- for~dollar, out of the pockets of ordinary AllianceBernstein Funds investors, such

as plaintiff and the other members of the Class: A mutual fund’s share price is determined to be

$10 per share fora given day. After 4:00 p.m., good news concerning the fund’s constituent

sgcurities may hﬁve been made public, causing the price of the fund’s underlying securities to
rise materially and, coriespondingly; causing the next day’s NAV to rise and increasing the fund
share price to $15. Under this example, ordinary investors placing an order to buy after 4:00
p.m. on the day the news came out wbuld have their orders filled at $15, the next day’s price.
Defendants’ scheme allowed Canary, aﬁd other favored investors, to purchase fund shares at the
pre-4:00 p.m. price of $10 per share even after the post-4:00 p.m. news came out and the market
had already started to move upwards. These favored mvestom were therefore guaranteed a §5 per
share profit by buying aﬁer the market had closed at the lowér price, available only to them, and
then selling the shares the next day at the higher price. Because all shares sold by investors are
bought by the respective fund, which ﬁmst sell shares or use available c;ash for the purchase,
Caﬁary’s profit of $5 per unit conﬁes, dollar- fér ddl]ar, directly ﬁ'om the other fund investors.
This harmful practxce which damaged plaintiff and other members of the Class, is completely
undisclosed in the Prospectuses by which the AlhanceBernstem Funds were marketed and sold
and pursuant to which plaintiff and the other Class members purchased their AllianceBemstein
Funds securities. | Moreover, late trading is specifically proh.ibitea by the “forward‘ pricing rule ¢

embodied in SEC regulations. See 17 C.F.R. § 270.22¢-1(a).




S'ecfet Timed Trading at the ExneﬁSe of Plaintiff and Other Members of the Class
31. | “Timing” is an mbiuége sn*atcgy invdlving short-term ﬁading that can be used to
profit from mutual funds’ use of “stale™ prices to calculate the value of securities held in &1e
funds’ portfolio. -These prices are ;‘stéle” bccause they do not neceséan'ly reflect the “fair value”
of such securities as of the time the NAV is calculated. A typical example is 4 U.S. _mutﬁal fund
that holds Japanese securities. - Becaﬁse of the time zone diﬁ'erenée, the Japanese market may
“close at 2 a.m.‘ New York time. If the U.S. mutual fund manager uses the closing prices of the
Japanese securities in his or hér fund to arrive at an NAV at 4 p.m; in New York, he or she is |
relying _ori market information tixat is fourteen hours old. If there have been positive market
moves during the New York trading day thzﬁ will cause the Japanese market to rise when it later
~opens, the stale Japﬁnese prjc'eé will not reflect that increése, 'and tﬁé fund’s NAV will be
artificially low. Put another way, the NAV \&ould nof reflect the ﬁue current market value of the
stocks the fund holds. This aﬁd similar strategies are knownias “time zone arbitrage.” |
32, A similar type of timing is po‘ssible in mutual funds that contain illiquid securities
such as high-yield bonds or sma‘Il cépitalization stocks. Herg, the fact that some of the
' AllianceBernéteih Funds’ underlying securities may noi hai?e traded for hours before the New
York closing time c;,an reﬁder the fund’s NAV stale and thus be susceptible to being timed. This
is sometimeé known as “liquidity arbitrage.” | ‘
33, Like late trading, effective timing capfures an arbitrage profit. | And like late
trading, arbitmgé proﬁ;t from timing comes dollar- fof—déllar out of the pockets of the long-term
investors: the timer steps in at fhe last moment and takes'par; of the buy-and-hold investors’

upside when the market goes up, so the next day’s NAV is reduced fo r those who are still in the




fund. If the fim.er sells ;hon on bad days -- as Canary aiso did — the arbitrage haé the effect of
makiﬁg the nexi_ @y’s NAV lower than itﬂwoul‘d' otherwise have been, thus magnif)dn‘g the losses
that investqrs are experiencing in a décliﬁing market. .

34.  Besides the»wealth transfer of arbitr%age (cailed “dilution”), timers also-harm their

target funds in a number of other ways. They impose their tranSaction costs on the Jong-term

investors. Trades necessitated by timer redemptions can also result in the realization of taxable
capital gains at an undesirable time, or may result in managers having to sell stock into a falling

market. -

35. © Itis widely acknowledged that timing inures to the detriment of long-term mutual
fund investors and, because of this detrimental effect, the Prospectuses stated that timing is

monitored and that the Fund Defendants work to pre%/ent it. These statements were materially

false ;md misleading because, not only did the Fund Defendants allow the Canary to time their
trades, bui, 1n the case of Canary, they. eﬂso provided a u@ing platform, provided Canary
proprtetary infbrmation'aboﬁt the stocks held in the AllianceBemnstein Funds, financed the timing
atbitrage strategy and sought to profit and did profit from it.

: Defendahts’ Scheme

36.  On September 3, 2003, New York Attorney General Eliot Spitzer filed a
complaint in connection with the unlawful practices alleged herein (the “Spitzer Complaint™).
The Spitzer Complainf alleged as follows:

‘Canary engaged in late trading on a daily basis from in or about
March 2000 unti] this office began its investigation in July of 2003.
[t targeted dozens of mutual funds and extracted tens of millions of

dollars from them. During the declining market of 2001 and 2002, ‘
it used late trading to, in effect, sell mutual fund shares short. This
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caused the mutual funds to overpay for their shares as the market
went down, serving to magnify long-term investors’ losses. [...}

[Bank of America] (1) set Canary up with a state-of-the-art
electronic trading platform [. . .] (2) gave Canary permissionto
time its own mutua! fund family, the “Nations Funds”, (3) provided
Canary with approximately $300 million of credit to finance this
late trading and timing, and (4) sold Canary derivative short
positions it needed to time the funds as the market dropped. In the
process, Canary became one of Bank of America’s Jargest
customers. The relationship was mutually beneficial; Canary
made tens of millions through late trading and timing, while the
various parts of the Bank of America that serviced Canary made
millions themselves. ‘

37.  According to mutual fund orders and other records obtained by the Attofney

General’s Office, Canary vused an AllianceBernstein F und for its late trading and market timing

~ practices.

38 On September 4, 2003, The Wall Street Journal published a front page story about
the Spitzér Conaplaint uﬁder the headline: “Spitzer Kicks Off Fund Probe With a $40 Milliﬁn
Settlement,” invwhicrh thé New York Attomvey Gen‘eral compared _affer-the-close trading to “bcing
allowed td bet on a horse race after the race was over,” and which indicated that tﬁe practi;:es ‘

enumerated in the Spitzer Complaint were just the tip of the iceberg. In this regard, the article

stated:

[. . .] “The late trader,” he said, “is being allowed into the fund
after it has closed for the day to participate in a profit that would
otherwise have gone completely {o the fund’s buy-and- hold
investors.” ' ' ’ : '

- In a statement, Mr. Spitzer said “the full extent of this complicated
fraud is not yet known,” but he asserted that “the mutual-fund
industry operates on a double standard” in which certain traders
“have been given the opportunity to manipulate the system. ' They




make illegal after-hours trades and improperly exploit market B
swings in ways that harm ordinary long-term investors.” -

For such long-term investors, rapid trading in and out of funds
raises trading costs and lowers returns; one study published last
year estimated that such strategies cost long-term investors $5
billion a year.

The practice of placing late trades, which Mr. Stern was accused of

- at Bank of America, also hurts long-term shareholders because it

' dilutes their gains, allowing latecomers to take advantage of events
after the markets closed that were likely to raise or lower the funds’® -
share price.

39.  On September 30, 2003, Allianéc Cépital Management announced in a press‘
release published over PR Newswire that the Nev} York State Attorney General aﬁd the SEC had
contacted Alliance Capital Managexﬁent in connection with the regulators’ investigation of
market timing and late trading practices in the mutﬁal fund industry. Additiohaily, Alliance
Capital Management revealed the fqllowing:

based on the preliminary results of its own ongoing internal
investigation concerning mutual fund transactions, it has identified
conflicts of interest in connection with certain market timing

transactions. In this regard, Alliance Capital has suspended
two_of its emplovees, one of whom js a portfolio manager of the

" AllianceBernstein Technology Fund. and the other of whom is
an executive involved with selling Alliance Capital hedge fund
products. [Emphasis added.]

40. On Octobcr 1, 2003, an article appearing in The Wall Street Journal identified the
two Alliance Capital Management employees who were suspended as a result of their

involvement in conflicts of interests as defendants Gerald Malone and Charles Schaffran. The

article revealed that Allitance Capital Management had been subpéenaed by the New York State
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Attorney General’s Office early on in its inquiry into the mutual fund industry, and further,
elaborated on defendants Malone and Schaffran’s wrongful and illegal misconduct:
certain investors were allowed to make rapid trades in a mutual

fund managed by Mr. Malone in exchange for making large
investments in Aliiance hedge funds also run by Mr. Malone].)

* k%

Mr. Schaffran is alleged to have helped a broker at a Las Vegas
firm called Security Brokerage Inc. gain the ability to make short-
term trades in shares of Mr. Malone’s mutual fund in exchange for
investments into Mr. Malone’s hedge funds][.]

* % 4

As previously reported, [defendant Edward] Stern’s firm, Canary,
appears to had arrangements allowing short-term trading with
Alliance funds. . . Meanwhile, according to a copy of trade orders
abtained by [Attorney General Elliot] Spitzer’s office, on the
evening of Jan. 13 this year, Mr. Stern placed late trades through
Bank of America’s trading system to sell 4,178,074 shares of
Alliance Growth and Income Fund, which at the time would have
amounted to an approximately [sic] $11 million transaction.

The Prospectuses, Including the AllianceBernstein Technology Fund Prospectus,
Were Materially False and Misleading '

4],  Plaintiff and each member of the Class were entitled to, and did récei?e, one of
’ tﬁe Prospectuses, each of which contained substantially the same materially false and misleadfng v
s‘tatem.ents‘régarding. the AlliéﬁceBemstein Funds’ policies on Iaté trading and timed traﬁing, and
acquired shares pursuant to one or more of the Prospéctuscﬁ. »
| 42. bThe Prospe_ctusés contained materi;ally false and misleading statements w1th
respect to how shares} are priced, typically reprevser;ﬁng as follows: |

How the Funds Value Theif Shares .
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‘The Funds’ net asset value or NAV is calculated at 4 p.m., Eastern
time, each day the Exchange is open for business. To calculate
NAV, a Fund’s assets are valued and totaled, liabilities are
subtracted, and the balance, called net assets, is divided by the
number of shares outstanding. The Funds value their securities at
;o their current market value determined on the basis of market

' quotations, or, if such quotations are not readily available, such
other methods as the Funds’ directors believe accurately reflect fair
market value. ‘

43.  The Prospectuses, in explaining how orders are processed, typically represented
that orders received before the end of a business day will receive that day’s net asset value per
- share, while orders received after close will receive the next business day’s price, as follows:
Your order for purchase, sale, or exchange of shares is priced at the
next NAV calculated after your order is received in proper form by
the Fund. Your purchase of Fund shares may be subject to an

initial sales charge. Sales of Fund shares may be subject to a
contingent deferred sales charge or CDSC. ‘

* % %

HOW TO EXCHANGE SHARES

You may exchange your Fund shares for shares of the same class

of other Alliance Mutual Funds (including AFD Exchange _
Reserves, a money market fund mavaged by Alliance). Exchanges
of shares are made at the next determined NAV, without sales or
service charges. You may request an exchange by mail or
telephone. You must call by 4:00 p.m., Eastern time, to receive -
that day’s NAV. The Funds may modify, restrict, or terminate the
exchange service on 60 days’ written notice. -

HOW TO SELL SHARES

You may “redeem” your shares (i.e., sell your shares to a F und) on’
any day the Exchange is open, either directly or through your
financial intermediary. Your sales price will be the next-
determined NAV, less any applicable CDSC, after the Fund
receives your sales request in proper form. Normally, proceeds
will be sent to you within 7 days. If you recently purchased your
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shares by check or electronic funds transfer, your redempﬁon
payment may be delayed unti] the Fund is reasonably satisfied that
the check or electronic funds transfer has been collected (which
may take up to 15 days).

44.  The PJospectuses falsely stated that Alliance Capital Management actively

~ safeguards ‘sharehol‘dc:rs from the harmful effects of timing. For example, language that typically

appeared in the Prospectuses stated as follows:

A Fund may refuse any order to purchase shares. In particular, the
Funds reserve the right to restrict purchases of shares (including
through exchanges) when they appear to evidence a pattern of
frequent purchases and sales made in response to short-term
 considerations. In an effort to discourage frequent trading, murual
funds may impose a redemption fee if shares are sold or exchanged
~ within p prescribed time. '

45.  The Prospectuses failed to disclose >and misrepresented the following material and

adverse facts which damaged plaintiff and the other members of the Class: |

(a) | that defendants had entered into an agreement allqwing_ Canary t§ time.
their trading of the VA.HianceBérnstein Funds shares and to “Jate trade™;

(b) | that, pursuant to that agreement, Canary and other favored invcstoré
regularly timed and late-traded the A]hanceBemstem Funds shares; |

| (©) | that, contrary to the express representatxons in the Prospectuses, the

AlliaﬁceBemstein Funds enforced their policy against frequent traders selectively, i.e., they did .
not enforce it against.Ctzﬁlary and they waived thé redemption feg_s that these defendants. should
have been required to pay pursuant to stated AllianceBemétein Funds policies;

(d) . | hat the Fund Defendants regulariy allowed Canary and other favdred |

investors to engage in {rades that were disruptive to the efficient management of the
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: o AllianceBernstein Funds and/or increased the AllianceBemSteiﬁ Funds’ costs and thereby
reduced the Allianceléernstein Funds’ actual performénf;e; and | | |
(e) | that the amount of compensation paid by the AllianceBernstein F: uﬁds to
Alliance Capital Managérﬁem, because of the AIlianceBemstcin Funds’ secret é.greement with

Canary and others, prpvided substé.ntial additional undisclosed compensation to Alliance Capital

Management by the AllianceBemstein Funds and their respective shareholders, including
plaintiff and other fnembers’of the Clas#. |
46. Defendants issued, caused td be issued and vparticipated in the issuance of
_ materially false and misIeading writfen statements to the investing public which were contained
in Prospectuses and omittéd to state material facts' that were required to be stated in order to
| make the statem‘ent‘s‘ c:ntainea fherein not misleading as set forth aBove. This misinforrriation
continued throughﬁut the Class Period. By reason of the conduct herein alleged, Defendants

violated, and/or contrglled a person an_d/br entity who violated, Section 11 of ﬂ1e ‘Securities Act.

| VIOLATIONS OF THE SECURITIES ACT
| FIRST CLAIM

Against Defendants For Violations
Of Section 11 Of The Securities Act

47, Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained above as if fully
set forth herein, except that, for pufposcs of this claim, plaintiff expressly excjudesand disclaim
any allegation that could be construed as allegi'ng‘ fraud or intentional or reckless misconduct and

otherwise incorporatesithe allegations contained above.
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day’s price. The Prigs

time its trading of the

48, Th:s claim is brought pursuant to Section 11 of the Securities Act, 15 U S.C.

§ 77k, on behalf of the plaintiff and other members of the Class agamst Defendants.

49.  Defendants are the registrants for the fund shares sold to plainﬁff and the other

members of the Class

and are statutorily liable under Section 11. Defendants issued, caused to

be issued and participated in the issuance of the materially false and misleading written

statements and/or omijssions of matetial facts that were contained in the Prospectuses.

50. Plaintiff were pfovided with the Technology Fund Prospectus and, similarly, prior

to purchasing units of]

each of the other AllianceBernstein Funds, all Class members likewise

received the appropridte prospectus. Plaintiff and other Class members purchased shares of the

‘ AllianceBernsteiﬁ Fun

ds pursuant or traceable 1o the relevant false and misleading Prospectuses _

and were damaged thereby

5. Asset forth herem the statements contained in the Prospectuses when they

became effective, were materially false and misleading for 3 nurnber of reasons, mcludmg that

they stated that it was the practice of the AllianceBemstein Funds to monitor and take steps to

prevent timed trading

because of its adverse effect on fund investors, and that the trading price

was determined as of 4 pm each trading day with respect to all investors when, in fact, Canary

and other select invest:

ors were allowed to engage in timed trading and late-trade at the previous -

pectuses failed to disclose and misrepresented, inter alia, the following

material and adverse facts:

()

hat defendants had entered into an unlawful agreement allowing Canary to

[lianceBemstein Funds shares and to “late trade;”
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®)

that, pursuant to that agreement, Canary regularly timed and late-traded the

AllianceBemstein Funds shares;

(@

that, contrary to the express representations in the Prospectuses, the

Al]ianceBemstein Funds enforced their policy against frequent traders and late trading |

selectively, i.e., they did not enforce it against Canary;

(d

were disruptive to the

that the Fund Defendants regularly allowed Canary to engage in trades that

efficient ma.nagemént of the AllianceBernstein Funds and/or increased the

AllianceBemnstein F mrds’ costs and thereby reduced the AllianceBernstein Funds’ actual

performance; and

©

AllianceBemnstein Fus

52.  Atthet

the Prospectuses failed to disclose that, pursuant to the unlawful

- agreements, the Fund Defendants and Canary benefitted financially at the expense of the

ids investors including plaintiff and the other members of the Class.

ime they purchased the AllianceBernstein Funds shares traceable to the

defective Prospectuses, plaintiff and Class members were without knowledge of the facts

concerning the false
reasonably have posse

statute of limitations.

d misleading statements or omission alleged herein and could not

ssed such knowledge. This claim was brought within the applicable

SECOND CLAIM

Against Alliance Holding, Alliance Corporation, Alliance Capital Management,
and AXA as Control Persons of The AllianceBernstein Registrants

~ For Violations of Section 15 of the Securities Act

- 53.  Plaintiff repeats and realleges each and every allegation contained above, except

that for purposes of thi§ claim, plaintiff expressly excludes and disclaims any allegation that
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could be construed aks alleging fraud or intentional reckless misconduct and otherwise

incorporates the alleg

ations contained above. -

54, This Claim is brought pursuant to Section 15 of the Securities Act against

Alliance Holding, All

iance Corporation, Alliance Capital Management, and AXA, each as 5

control person of the AllianceBemstein Registrants. It is appropriate to treat these defendants as

a group for pleading purposes and to presume that the false, misleading', and incomplete

information conveyed in the AllianceBernstein Funds’ public filings, press releases and othef

publfcations are the cpllective actions of Alliance Holding, Alliance Corporation, Alliance -

Capital Management,

and AXA.

55, The A.lianceBemstein Registrants (including Defendant AllianceBernstein

Technology Fund, Ing.) are liable under Section 11 of the Securities Act as set forth herein.

56.  Eachq

and AXA was a “cont

f Alliance Holding, Alliance Corporation, Alliance Capital Management,

rol person” of the AllianceBernstein Registrants within the meaning of

Section 15 of the Sectrities Act by virtue of its position of operational control and/or ownership.

At the time plaintiff a

hd other members of the Class purchased shares of AllianceBernstein

Funds - by virtue of T:eir positions of control and authority over the AllianceBernstein

Registrants ~~ Alliance Hblding, Alliance Corporation, Alliance Capital Management, and AXA

directly and indirectly, had the power and authority, and exercised the same, to cause the

AllianceBernstein Registrants to engage in the wrongful conduct complained of herein. Alliance |

Holding, Alliance Corporation, Alliance Capital Management, and AXA issued, cansed to be

issued, and participated in the issuance of materially false and misleading statements in the

Prospectuses. -

.




57 Pumsu

Holding, Alliance Ca

and the other member

Section 11 of the Sec

- 58. - By vir|

ant to Section 15 of the Securities Act, by reason of the foregoing, Alliance

rporation, Alliance Capital Management, and AXA are liable to plaintiff

s of the Class for the AllianceBernstein Registrants’ primary violations of

urities Act.

tue of the foregoing, plaintiff and the ofher members of the Class are

entitled to damages aifa.inst Alliance Holding, Alliance Corporation, Alliance Capital

Management, and AXA. v
PRAYER FOR RELIEF
" WHEREFORE, plaintiff prays for relief and judgment, as follows:

A. Detern
Lead Plaintiff and his
representative undér R

B. | Award
against all defendants,
wrongdoing, in an am

C. Award)
with Alliance Capital ]
and recovery of all fee

D. Causihg

(

lining that this action is a proper class action and appointing plaintiff as

3

counsel as Lead Counsel for the Class and certifying him as a class

ule 23 of thé Federal Rules of Civil Procedure; |

ing compensatory damages in favor of plaintiff and other Class members

jointly and severally, for all damages sustained as a result of defendants’
punt to be proven at trial, including interest thereon; |

ng plaintiff and other members of the Class rescissioh of their contracts
LIanaéement, inciuding récovery of all fees"which woﬁld otherwise apply,
s paid to Alliance Capital Management pursuant t»o such‘ agréements;

r the Fund Defendants to account for wrongfully gotten gains, profits and

compensation and to make restitution of same and disgorge them;

E. Awardi

this action, including ¢

ng plaintiff and the Class their reasonable costs and expenses incurred in

ounse] fees and expert fees; and

19




. F Suchiother and further relief as the Court may deem just and proper.

L DEMANDE)

Plaintiff hereby demands a trial by jury.

Dated: November 19,

2003 .

' BERNSTEIN LIEBHARD & LIFSHITZ, LLP

o Jud, Ll

Sandy A. Ligbhard (SL-0835)
U. Seth Ottensoser (UO-9703)
Gregory M. Egleston (GE-1932)

10 East 40th Street ‘

New York, NY 10016 .

Tel: (212) 779-1414

* Attorneys for Plaintiff
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